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Good afternoor 

1 

3. 

Many thanks, 

( / )rr'i-~'.Cft-i·:~nJ~ I>i-uµr~I.n t (}fTl(:;~-r 

lnnrnh' i{,:,:urd:, Utt\:,:, H{O J 

-6 inmate have hits 
as a Parole Violation Hit 

as a Probation Violation Hit From Florida 
Is serving a misdemeanor sentence that expires 2~2~25 

1)1 ~1 rict () 1· C\> I u1r1biJ JJt.. ... p~tru11c·1rt or t'(;n--'.~-~;t f ;J11:; 
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Message 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

·subject: 

1/21/2025 6:23:56 PM 
Faust, Thomas (DOC~ dc.gov] 
RE: J-6 lnrnates with hits 

l apr1:cciatc you. 

From: Faust, Thomas (DOC)~ dc.goV> 

Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2025 1:23 PM 

To: Carter, Ronald (USMS)~ usdoj.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fw: J-6 Inmates with hits 
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Message 

From: 

Sent: 

To : 

cc: 
Subject: FW: J-6 Inmates with hits 

From: Faust, Thomas (DOC) de.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2025 1:23 PM 
To: Carter, Ronald (USMS)~ usdoj.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fw: J-6 Inmates with hits 

USMS)_,usdoj.gov] 
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Message 

Sent: 1/21/ 2025 6:32 :49 PM 
Subject: FW: List Creation 
Attachments : Copy of Copy of DC DOC J6 LIST January 20 2025 - UPDATE 012125_Breakout.xlsx 

Chief Deputy LS 7\1arshal (A) 
Cnitcd States Marshals Service 

Wa.s~ . istrict Court 
(M)- 0) 

usdoj.gov> 

usdoj.gov>; -
usdoj.gov>; Taylor, Leah (USMS) @usdoj.gov>; Pittella, Mark (USMS) 

usdoj.gov>; Wade, Drew J. (USMS) 

usdoj.gov> 
'Subject: RE: List Creation 

All , 

Please sec below list of individuals pending actions -

• Thcre arc (21) individuals who the D/DC will nccd to gct a court ordct· to affect their release from custody. 
• There an: (0) individuals pending release due to being sentenced and not designated. The USl'v1S has already 

released (2) individuals in this category. 
• There arc (3) individuals pending release due to being sentenced and designated The district will need lo 

CDurdinatc with thl'. Offit:c ofTram;portation Sc,;rvit:es for individuals whose home,; of record is not at their rnrrcnl 
housing location. 

• There arc (R) individuals who will not be rclca::.ed due to having a detainer in place .. Some detainer::. arc from 
State and local agencies and other Federal jurisdictions pending charges unrelated to their J6 charge in which they 
received a Pa1·don. 

• A total of (7)) individuals have been rclcascd due to havc bci ng sentenced and not designated or sentenced and 
designated cnroulc io 13OP. 

• The USMS has (0) individual::; identified on Rond. 

US\t1 Carkr, and SIJUS!v~ lcasc confirm the bdow roskr. 

The followinl! indi,viduaJs are in need of a court order: 21 
"IA\ff US\1S# CURRF:l\T STATCS 

FACILITV 
l3ALL, DA:--JILL 57185- DC Pretrial 

510 Dcpa11mem or Defendant 
Corrcctions 

l3Al\'UELOS, JOlll\ 03600- DC Pretrial 
511 Depa11mcm of Defondant 

Corr;,;cl ions 

DETAI"IERS "ICIC 

PR013ATIOl\ 
HI.T 
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RRO\Vl\, JFRE\1Y 67547- DC Prcll"ial 
\,1JCIIALL 509 Department of Defendant 

Corrections 
CiOSSJA:"-JKOWSKL VITALI 26236- DC Prcll"ial 

509 Department of Defendant 
Corrections 

I ILTCIJl'.'JSO'.'l, JOSEPIJ 52978- DC Pn:trial 11\ S JAIL 'lY 
509 Department of Defendant O1\LY 

Corrections 
LAl\CJ, EDWARD 7641-10- DC Pn:trial 

05..J Department of Defendant 
Corrections 

POLLOCK, JOI\A r!IA'.'J 937)1]- DC Pn:trial 
510 Department of Defendant 

Corrections 
POLLOCK, OLIVIA 52907- DC Pretrial 

509 Department of Defendant 
Corrections 

POWELL RACHEL 28873- DC Returned from 
509 Dcpai1mcnt of 13OP- lla,dcton 

Corrections for 
rc:-;cntcncing 

PURDY, GREGORY 73842- DC Pn:trial 
509 Department of Defendant 

Corrections 
TARAI\TO, TAYLOR 66528- DC Pn:trial 

510 Department of Defendant 
Corrections 

TUR'.'JLR, ROBERT 91402- DC Pn:trial 
007 Department of Defendant 

Corrections 
VOUR'\/AS, TO\1 9341 8- DC Pretrial 

510 Department of Defendant 
Corrections 

FARI.FS, ROCKl\F 53802- DC 
510 Dcpai1mcnt of 

Corrections 
WILSO:"-J, RYA1\ 40718- DC Pretrial 

511 Dcpai1mcnt of Dcfcndant 
Cmrections 

DA:"-JIEL. DAVID 8()014- l)C Pretrial 
510 Depai1ment of Dcfcndant 

Cmrections 
GRISS8Y, A1\DRL 51379- DC Pretrial 

SI I Dcpatl.mcnt of Defendant 
Cmrections 

13ECKLLY, DA'."v1O:"-J 25946- Grady County :'-Jew Chat·ge~-
509 Pcnding.JPATS 

to DC 
KlLLLY, lDWARI) ()()454- Blount County Pretrial 

509 Defendant 

\1A:"-Jli!A, JLA:"-Jl rTI . .: 56257- Grady County Pretrial 
510 Defendant 

PORTER, JA\tllS SALl:"-Jl Pretrial 
COUI\TY Defendant 



2025-USMS-000842 97 of 171 First Interim Release

The following haye been Sentenced but ~ot Designated: 0 
CURRENT 

NAME USMS# FACILITY STATUS DETAINERS NCIC 

Th f II ' 0 0Wlll!2 h ave b s een .. entence an cs1e:natc tl tlD ' tl 3 ' 'U\ff CLRRE1'T FACILITY I STATUS D[TAI1'ERS ',CIC 

REFFITT, 26216-509 Cirecne Sentenced Pending .IPA TS 
GLY Countv l'vtovcmrnt to 13OP 
WJ\Y1\ICK, 86774-509 Grndy Sentenced Pending .IPA TS 
\1J\RK County Movement to ROP 
ALA\1, 80451-007 lirndy Sentenced Pending JPATS 
ZACHARY Countv Movement to ROP 

Detainer :"lo Release: 8 
',A\ff llS\IS# CllRR[',T STATUS DETAl',[RS 1'CIC 

FACILITY 
13URTOI\, l3Rlll\ 47333- Midland County Pending Fed case, 111 Pending WIJCAP 

511 Jail \1idland County L'\11 
Sheriffs Custody 

DlSJARDl'.'IS, 54716- Rhode Island Sentenced pending state STATE Sentrnce 
TIMO rJJY 510 DOC case disposition 
SHU FR, 76317- Southeastern Sentenced pending state STATE CHARGES 
BLt\JAMl'i 510 Correctional case disposition 
'IEEIY. DARREii 08733- DC Depa11ment Released from LS\1S Serving DC Superior 

424 of Corrections custody Cmni sentence 
ROX, DO\111\IC 36376- DC Dcpa11ment P1·et1"ial Defendant FLORIDA WRIT 

510 of Corrections OFT Al'IER ST ATE 
CJJARGLS 

TASKER. JASOt\ 27982- DC Dcpa11ment P1·et1"ial Defendant STATE DETAl'ffR 
511 of Corrections 

\-11DDl'.'IDORL 44377- DC Dcpartmcnt Pretrial Defendant STAil DLTAl'ILR 
THEODORE 51 I ofC01TCctions 
WOODS, SIIA'.'ll 5 1913- Sangamon Cty Sentenced pending state STAil DLTAl'ILR 

509 Jail case disposition 

Cm-rentlv Released due to Pardon: 7 
',A\ff llS\IS# CllRRE',T STATUS DETAl',ERS t\CIC 

FACILITY 
VAIE'ffl'i, 99224- DC Sentenced, not Designated-REI.EASED 
At\DRLW 510 Dcpc11iment JA'.'I 20 2025 

of 
Corrections 

VALL'/ 11'1. 99209- DC Sentenced, not Desig1rntcd-RELl.:ASl.:D 
\1ATTHE\V 510 Depa11ment JJ\:"-J 20 2025 

of 
Corrections 

RIYTHE, JASOt\ 82927- Tallahatchie Sentenced Pending JP J\ TS Mo\ ement to 
509 Cty 13OP - RELEASl.:D JA'.'I 21 2025 
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WAYl\lCK, 868ri6- Tallahatchie Scntcnecd Pending .IPA TS Movcrncnt to 
JERRY 509 Cty UOP - RELEASED JA\f 21 2025 

\1AURER, 45462- Grayson Scntcrn:l:d Prnding J PATS Movl:mcnt to 
CHRISTOPHER 510 County, KY ROP - Released JA\f 21 2025 

Detention 
RICHMOJ\b, 95532- Grayson Sentenced Pending JPATS Movement to 
EDWARD 510 C~iunty, KY UOP - Rckascd JA\f 21 2025 

Detention 
S\11TH. RRY A\f 35()53- (irayson Sentenced Pending JPA TS Movement to 

510 County, KY 13OP - Released JA\I 21 2025 
Detention 

Please let me kno\\/ if additional ·information is needed. 

V/R, 

Deputy Assistant Director 
Prisoner Operations Division 
l;nited States Marshals Service 
Cell: 

From (USMS) 
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2025 J.1:56 AM 
To 
Cc: 

Subject: RE: List Creation 

Please work and coordinate with the district to consolidate the attached list into the .5 categories (exactly) 
outlined below· hy the .AD. ln addition, please work ·with the district to ensure the following individuals anl 
released immediately (CRGii 'lT). Lastly, please work with the district to sec how we can assist. 

RLYTHE, JASOl\ 
REFFITT, GUY 
WAY!\ICK. JERRY 
\\/AYT\JCK, \1ARK 
ALAM, LACI !ARY 

Please let me km..1\v any challenges or assistance.you need in this matter. 
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Thank you, 

- r 
Prisoner Orcrations Division 
Lnitcd States Marshals Service 
Cell: 

From: Sawyer, Aaron (USMS 

Se~ ary21,2 

To - USMS 
Cc: Carter; Ronald (USMSJ 

USMS 

Subject: List Creation 

Good morning SOUS\1-

1 just spoke with US\1 Ca11cr regarding a pending request from the Director. \Ve have been asked to separate the list you 
pn:vi,0u:,;ly provided for detainees in our custody into several sub cakgorics. The following are the categories: 

• Prc-sen:cnce detainees (,hose :1ccding :m order from lhc judicia:·y for :-elcasc) 
• Sentenced be;; rml tksir,n:1,(·d 
• Scntc:1ccd :rnd dcsig11:1ted mvai:ing rnovcn:c:it :o the BOP 
• Dc:aincc,, telcased in l:1c ct1mmc:11ily 
• Prisi>nc:-,- \\'i,h dc:aine,- or Pl her holds pr(·vcnting their :·ckase 

We \vill nei.:d to return this list Cor those remaining in our custody to the Director immediately in fu11herance oC 
communications with Department leadership. I will give you a call to work through logistics. 

Aaron Sawyer 

Assistant Director 
Prisoner Operations Division 

U.S. Marshals Service 
Cell: 
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NAME USMS# CURRENT FACILITY 
BALL, DANIEL 57185-510 DC Department of Corrections 

BANUELOS, JOHN 03600-511 DC Department of Corrections 

BOX, DOMINIC 36376-510 DC Department of Corrections 

BROWN, JEREMY MICHAEL 67547-509 DC Department of Corrections 

GOSSJANKOWSKI, VITALI 26236-509 DC Department of Corrections 

HUTCHINSON, JOSEPH 52978-509 DC Department of Corrections 

LANG, EDWARD 76480-054 DC Department of Corrections 

POLLOCK, JONATHAN 93781-510 DC Department of Corrections 

POLLOCK, OLIVIA 52907-509 DC Department of Corrections 

POWELL, RACHEL 28873-509 DC Department of Corrections 

PURDY, GREGORY 73842-509 DC Department of Corrections 

TARANTO, TAYLOR 66528-510 DC Department of Corrections 

TURNER, ROBERT 91402-007 DC Department of Corrections 

VALENTIN, ANDREW 99224-510 DC Department of Corrections 

VALENTIN, MATTHEW 99209-510 DC Department of Corrections 

TASKER, JASON 27982-511 DC Department of Corrections 

VOURNAS, TOM 93418-510 DC Department of Corrections 

EARLES, ROCKNE 53802-510 DC Department of Corrections 

NEELY, DARRELL 08733-424 DC Department of Corrections 

MIDDENDORF, THEODORE 44377-511 DC Department of Corrections 

WILSON, RYAN 40718-511 DC Department of Corrections 

DANIEL, DAVID 89014-510 DC Department of Corrections 

GRISSBY, ANDRE 51379-511 DC Department of Corrections 

WOODS, SHANE 51913-509 Sangamon Cty Jail 

BURTON, BRIEN 47333-511 Midland County Jail 

BLYTHE, JASON 82927-509 Tallahatchee Cty 
REFFITT, GUY 26216-509 Greene County I 
WAYNICK, JERRY 86866-509 Tallahatchee Cty 
WAYNICK, MARK 86774-509 Grady County 

DESJARDINS, TIMOTHY 54716-510 Rhode Island DOC 

SHULER, BENJAMIN 76317-510 Southeastern Correctional 

BECKLEY, DAMON 25946-509 Grady County 

KELLEY, EDWARD 99454-509 Blount County 

MANG IA, JEANETTE 56257-510 Grady County 

PORTER, JAMES SALINE COUNTY 

ALAM, ZACHARY 80451-007 Grady County 

MAURER, CHRISTOPHER 45462-510 Grayson County, KY Detention 

RICHMOND, EDWARD 95532-510 Grayson County, KY Detention 

SMITH, BRYAN 35953-510 Grayson County, KY Detention 
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STATUS DETAlNERS 
Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant FLORIDA WRIT DETAINER STATE CHARGES 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Returned from BOP- Hazleton for resentencing 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Sentenced, not Designated 

Sentenced, not Designated 

Pretrial Defendant STATE DETAINER 

Pretrial Defendant 

Released from USMS custody Serving DC Superior Court sentence 

Pretrial Defendant STATE DETAINER 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Sentenced pending state case disposition STATE DETAINER 

STATE DETAINER 

Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP 

Sentenced Pending JPATS Movement to BOP 

Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP 

Sentenced Pending JPATS Movement to BOP 

Sentenced pending state case disposition STATE Sentence 

Sentenced pending state case disposition STATE CHARGES 

New Charges- Pending JP ATS to DC 

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
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NCIC 
PROBATION HIT 

IN STATE NY ONLY 
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

VOURNA5, TOM 93418-510 DC Department of Corrections 

EARLES, ROCKNE 53802-510 DC Department of Corrections 

WILSON, RYAN 40718-511 DC Department of Corrections 

DAN I EL, DAVID 89014-510 DC Department of Corrections 

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
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STATUS DETAINERS NCIC 
Pretrial Defendant PROBATION HIT 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant IN STATE NY ONLY 

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
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NAME USMS# CURRENT FACILITY STATUS DETAINERS NCIC 

I 0 
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NAME USMS# CURRENT FACILITY STATUS 
REFFITT, GUY 26216-509 Greene County Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP 

WAYNICK, MARK 86774-509 Grady County Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP 

ALAM, ZACHARY 80451-007 Grady County Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP 
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DETAINERS NCIC 
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
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STATUS DETAINERS NClC 
Pending Fed case, in Midland County Sheriff's Custody Pending WHCAP E/MI 

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
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NAME USMS# CURRENT FAOllTY 
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
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STATUS 
Sentenced, not Designated-RELEASED JAN 20 2025 

Sentenced, not Designated-RELEASED JAN 20 2025 

Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP - RELEASED JAN 21 2025 

Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP - RELEASED JAN 21 2025 

Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP- Released JAN 212025 

Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP- Released JAN 212025 

Sentenced Pending JP ATS Movement to BOP- Released JAN 212025 

I DETAINEAS I NCICI 
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NAME I USMS# I CURRENT FACILITY I STATUS I DETAINERS I NCIC I 
0 
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Message 

From: 

Sent: 
To : 

Subject: 
Attachments : Copy of Copy of DC DOC J6 LIST January 20 2025 - UPDATE 012125_Breakout.xlsx 

Chief Deputy LS Marshal (A) 
Cnitcd States Marshals Service 
Washington DC - District Court 
(M) (0) 

Subject: RE: List Creation 

@usdoj.gov> 

usdoj.gov>; Carter, Rona usdoj.gov>-
v>; Taylor, Leah (USMS) @usdoj.gov>; Pittella, Mark (USMS) 

(US usdoj.gov>; Wade, Drew J. (USMS) 

SMS) 

usdoj.gov> 



2025-USMS-000842 114 of 171 First Interim Release

Message 

From: 

Sent: 1/21/2025 6:52 :57 PM 
To : 

·subj_ect; FW: Updat:e 1:}52 

Mar'k Patella 

-

10· t 
Cell) 

BALL, DANI EL 

BANUELOS, JOHN 

('USMS) 

DC 
Department 

57185- of 

5'10 Corrections 

DC 

Depa~tment 
03600- of 

511 Corrections 

DC 
Department 

36376- of 

510 Corrections 

DC 

Department 
26236- of 

GOSSJANKOWSK"I, V ITALI 509 Correcfions 

HUTCH INSON, JOSEPH 

LANG, EDWARD 

POLLOCK, JONATHAN 

DC 

Depar-tment 
52978- of 

509 Corrections 

DC 

Department 
76480- of 

054 Corrections 

93781- DC 

SlO . Qepartment 

usdoj,gov] 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendar:,t 

Pretria•I Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial Defendant 

Pretrial D~fendant 

FLORIDA 
WRIT 
DETAINER 
STATE 

CHARGES 

:~~Y>;Jpi~~:·•·········· ...... HER E 

·P~B-~•••••••••••• 
9ttARGEs••••••••·••• 

PROBATION 
HIT 

IN STATE 
NY ONLY 
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of 
Corrections 

DC 
Department 

52907- of 
POLLOCK, OLIVIA 509 Corrections Pretrial Defendant 

DC 
Oepartrnent Returned from 130?- Hazleton 

28873- of for resentendng-RELEASED JAN 
POWELL, RACHEL 509 Corrections 21 2025 

DC 
Department 

73842- of 
PURDY, GREGORY 509 Corrections Pretrial Defendant 

DC 
Department 

66528- of 
TARANTO, TAYLOR 510 Corrections Pretrial Defendant 

DC 
Department 

91402- of 
TURNER, ROBERT 007 Corrections Pretrial Defendant 

DC 
Oepartrnent 

99224- of Sentenced, not Designated-
VALENTIN, ANDREW 510 Corrections RELEASED JAN 20 2025 

DC 
Oepartrnent 

99209- of Sentenced, not Designated-
VALENTIN, MATTHEW 510 Corrections RELEASED JAN 20 2025 

DC 
Department 

27982- of STATE 

TASKER, JASON 511 Corrections Pretrial Defendant DETAINER 

DC 
Department 

93418- of 
VOURNAS, TOM 510 Corrections Pretrial Defendant 

DC 
Department 

53802- of 
EARLES, ROCKNE 510 Corrections Pretrial Defendant 

DC Serving DC 
Oepartrnent Superior 

08733- of Court 
NEELY, DARRELL 424 Corrections Released from USMS custody sentence 

DC 
Oepartrnent 

MIDDENDORF, 44377- of Pretrial Defendant RELEASED STATE 
THEODORE 511 Corrections ON DC DISTRICT CHARGES DETAINER 

40718- DC 
WILSON, RYAN 511 Department Pretrial Defendant 
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of 

Corrections 

DC 

Department 
89014- of 

DANIEL, DAVID 510 Corrections Pretrial Defendant 

DC 

Department IN DIANA IN 
51379- of STATE 

GRISSBY, ANDRE 511 Corrections Pretrial Defendant ONLY 

51913- Sangamon Sentenced pending state case STATE 

WOODS, SHANE 509 Cty Jail disposition DETAINER 

47333- Midland STATE CASE 
BURTON, BRIEN 511 County Jail Pretrial Defendant Ml 

Sentenced PendingJPATS 
82927- Tallahatchee Movement to BOP - RELEASED 

BLYTHE,JASON 509 Cty JAN 212025 

PENDING 
Sentenced PendingJPATS OTHER 

26216- Greene Movement to BOP Releas.ed on FEDERAL 
REFFITT, GUY 509 County DC District CHARGES 

Sentenced PendingJPATS 
86866- T allahatchee Movement to BOP~ RHEAS ED 

WAYNICK, JERRY 509 Cly JAN 212025 
Sentenced PendingJPATS 

86774- Movement to BOP - Released 
WAYNICK, MARK 509 Grady County JAN 212025 

54716- Rhode Island STATE 
DESJARDINS, TIMOTHY 510 DOC Pretrial , state case pending CHARGES 

76317- Southeastern STATE 
SHULER, BENJAMIN 510 Correctional Pretrial , state case pending CHARGES 

25946-
BECKLEY, DAMON 509 Grady County Pretrial "RELEASED JAN 21 2025 

994S4- Blount 
KELLEY, EDWARD 509 County Pretrial Defendant 

56257- Pretrial Defendant- Pending 

MANGIA, JEANETTE SlO Grady County movement to DC 

Sentenced PendingJPATS 
48097- Movement to BOP - Released 

COOK , RICHARD 510 Grady County JAN 212025 

56173- SALINE Pretrial Defendant- Pending 
PORTER, JAMES 511 COUNTY movement to DC 

Sentenced PendingJPATS 
80451- Movement to BOP - Released 

ALAM, ZACHARY 007 Grady County JAN 21202S 

Grayson Sentenced PendingJPATS 
45462- County, KY Movement to BOP - Released 

MAURER, CHRISTOPKER 510 Oetention JAN 212025 
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Thariks for your t'ime and assistance. 

Very Respectfully, 

Supervisory Deputy United States Marshal 
arshafs Service I District of Columbia - District Court 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFfED 

This message may coi1tain information that is law ·enforcement sensitive. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please. immediate'l'y ('I) advise the sender by reply e-mail' that this message was inadv~rtenfly 
trar1smitted to you, and (2) delete this e-mail from your system. This message. should NOT be released 
to any personnel who. do not have a valid "need to know'' without prior approval of an authorized 
USMS officiat Thank you for your cooperation. 
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Message 

Frorn: 

Sent: 
To : 
·subject: 

1/21/2025 7:10:49 PM 
Sawyer, Aaron (USMS) ~ usdoj.gov] 
fW: 18 U.S. Code§ 4282 

From: Carter, Ronald (USMS) 
Sent: Tuesday, Jafluary 21, 2025 '.10:02 AM 

To dcd. usc:ourts.gov> 
Subject: 18 U.S. Code§ 428.2 

fiood morning, Chicl: 

Per our discussion, c.an yotl ask the Judg(.'s w l'.Onsidcr adding the below language in orders. lo n:kasc th0 .16 dcfcndants '!' 

18 L: .S. Code * 4282 - Arrested but unconvic.tcd persons 
U.S. Code 
On the release from custody ofa person arrested on a charge ofvlolatirrg any !aw 01"1hc Lnited States or of the Territmy 
of Alaska, but not indi(.'t(.'d nor informl'.d against, or indictl'.-d or informed against but not convictl'.d, and c!l'.tain(.'d pursuant 
to chapter 207, or a person held as a material witn~ss, the court in its disc.Tl'.iion may direct the United States marshal for 
the dis.tricl wherein he is relcas.cd. r,ursuant to l~cgulatlons promulgated by the Attorney General, to furnish tbc person ~n 
rckascd with transportation and subsistence to1.hc place of his arrest, or, at his election, to the pl.ace of his bona fide 
residence i r such cost is not greatet· than 10 the place of arrest. 

(J urn: 25, 1948, ch. 645, 62 Stat. 856; Pub. L. 98---4 73, title ll, ~ 207, Oct. 12, 1984, 98 Stat. 1986.) 

Thank you in advance, 

Ronald Carter 
U.S. Marshal (A) 
District or Columbia District Court 
Office 
Cd 

If better is possible good is not enough! 

Christie Wentworth
Highlight
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Message 

From: 

Sent: 1/21/2025 
USMS) 

3:53 PM 
To: @usdoj.gov];- USMS_,usdoj .gov] 
CC: usdoJ.gov] 
Subject: RE: Assistance in managing Pardoned Prisoner Record 

This record has duplicate intakes and duplicate court cases that require assistance from Capture and 
submissions to CJIS for correction before it can be closed. 

It appears she has her IA on the D/ DC case on 4/ 27/23 and on the same date she appeared in ~/PA for 
intake. However, instead of the case being created by D/ DC, M/ PA created it as a WOR to D/DC, which was 
incorrect. she was then released on bond. 

When she was arrested on the bond violation on 7/23/24, ~/PA did the same thing again creating a 
duplicate case as a CR Information for a charge of Bail . 

Thank you 

- uty 
United States Marshals Service 
W a s hi~ t r i c t c o u r t 
Cell:--

From: US\1S) ~ usdoj .gov> 
----~o~ i inal Messa e - ----

Sent: ues a anuary 1 20~ 
To: USMS usdo . 
Cc: 
SubJect: RE: 

Hi -

I've reach out to DUSM - on this record. 

-
Good afternoon, 

-ov>; ~ us~s 
dus~ 

ecord 

@usdoj.gov> 

ilu sdoj . gov> 

ausdoj. gov> 
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Thi s i s a USMS Director priority. 

~ ef Deputy 
Washington DC -District Court 

Capture will not allow a d"istr"itt user to close out subject record 
been pardoned by the President and "is due to be released . 

ASAP t o assis t . 
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From: 
Sent: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Get Outlook for iOS 

Carter, Ronald (USMS) 
Tue, 21 Jan 2025 22:04:05 +0000 
Fw: J6 DEFENDANT Release Order 
ReleaseOrder Ball 23cr160.pdf, Dismissal Order - Ball - 23-cr-160.pdf 

From:1Cbx5r. (b)(7J(CJ: (b)(7XFJ j@dcd.uscourts.gov> 

Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2025 5:00:18 PM 
To=f•x7xe) KUSMS) <j(b)(7XE> @usdoj.gov>; Carter, Ronald (USMS) 
l(b)l5): (b)(7J(CJ ~usdoj.gov> 
Cc:(•x0> (b)(7XCJ: (b)(7)(F) I (USMS) ""'t•x""or.~. (b..,..,,)(7,..,.,XCJ,.....: ,,..,.(b)(7=X,,,...FJ --,@usdoj.gov>; r )(O): (b)(7)(C): (b)(7XFJ [USMS) 

f • x5>: (b)(7JICJ: (b)(7)(FJ @usdoj.gov>; 11•x6>: 1•x1xci l@dcd.uscourts.gov>J._·•x_5J:_(b_X7_xc_J ___ __. 

1(bX6): (b)(7)(CJ e>dcd.uscourts.gov> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL) J6 DEFENDANT Release Order 

Court room Deputy to ~ J ~ ~ Jo.Ml\# E. 6~9 
United States District Court for the District of Columbia 
333 Constitution Ave. NW, Washington, DC 20001 
(202-)354-3144 
r XO): (b)(7XCJ: (b)(7)(FJ @dcd.uscourts.gov 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

day of JANUARY 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS 

DANIEL BALL 

cR1M1NAL No. 23-cr-00160-RC-1 
MAGISTRATE NO. 23-mj-000SS-GMH 

[oXOJ: (b)[i)(C): {b)[i) (EJ 

DOB: PDID: ~-----~ ------

DCDC: REG. NO. 571 85-510 
----

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF DEFENDANT 

IT IS ORDERED that the above named defendant be released from further custody: (IN THIS 
CASE ONLY) 

xx 
ON BOND (the bond requirements having been satisfied in this case) 

ON DISMISSAL (a dismissal having been entered in this case) 

VERDICT "NOT GUILTY" (the defendant having been found not guilty of all charges in 
this case) 

ON PROBATION (the defendant having been placed on probation in this case) 

ON SUPERVISED RELEASE (the defendant having been released back on supervised 
release) 

SENTENCED TO TIME SERVED 

By t he Court: Judge Contreras 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 
B j (l>I~): (b)[i~C) 

Deputy Clerk 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. Case No. 23-cr-160-RC 

DANIEL BALL, 

Defendant. 

ORDER 

Pursuant to the motion filed by the United States, ECF No. 74, it is hereby ordered that 

the Motion to Dismiss the Indictment pursuant to Rule 48(a) with prejudice is GRANTED. 

SO ORDERED this ~ day of ~~ • 2025. 

E Rudolph Contreras 
United States District Court Judge 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 
Importance: 

Good afternoon, 

Tue, 21 Jan 2025 22:18:37 +0000 
r b){7XE) I(usMs} 

Carter, Ronald (USMS); j(bxoJ: (b){7Xq; (b){7XFJ ~ USMS}; Christopher Cooper 
[EXTERNAL] Release Order for R. Tasker - Reg. No. 280-894 
CR24-484 R. Tasker (J6 DEF) 1.21.25.pdf 
High 

Please see the attached. 

Courtroom Operations Trainer 
Courtroom Deputy to the Honorable Christopher R. Cooper 

U.S. District and Bankruptcy Court, D.C. 
333 Constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20001 
Emall:fbx•>; (b){7XC) @dcd.uscourts.gov 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

the __ 2_1 __ day of __ J_a_n_u_a_r_y ___ _, 20 25 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS CRIMINAL NO. 24-CR-484 (CRC) 

JASON ROBERT TASKER 
MAGISTRATE NO. _________ _ 

l[b) [O): (S)(?)(C) I 
DOB:=·========'- PDID: ____ _ 

DCDC: REG. NO. 280-894 
----

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF DEFENDANT 

IT IS ORDERED that the above named defendant be released from further custody: (IN THIS 
CASE ONLY) 

X 
ON BOND (the bond requirements having been satisfied in this case) 

ON DISMISSAL (a dismissal having been entered in this case) * AS TO THIS CASE ONLY* 

VERDICT 11NOT GUILTY" (the defendant having been found not guilty of all charges in 
this case) 

ON PROBATION (the defendant having been placed on probation in this case) 

ON SUPERVISED RELEASE (the defendant having been released back on supervised 
release) 

SENTENCED TO TIME SERVED 

By the Court: Judge Christopher R. Cooper 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

By 1'")(6); (b)(7XCJ 

Deputy Clerk 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 
160.pdf 

llbX5
), (b)(7J(C) ~usdoj.gov 

Tue, 21 Jan 2025 17:38:44 -0500 
t ' )(6); (bX?XC); (b)(7)(F) I( USMS) 
Fwd: [EXTERNAL] JG DEFENDANT Release Order 
image00l.png, ReleaseOrder Ball 23cr160.pdf, Dismissal Order - Ball - 23-cr-

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From:rx6
); (b)(7)(C) l@dcd.uscourts.gov> 

Date: January 21 , 2025 at 5:02:47 PM EST 
To: ' l (b)(7XE> J(USMS)" 41

' )(7)(E> l@usdoj.gov>, "Carter, Ronald (USMS)" 
lbX5)' (b)(7XC) usdoj.gov> 

Cc: 1, x5), (b)(7XC); (b)(7XFJ (USMS)". X5>; co>(7XC), (b)(7)(F) ov>, (bX6J; (b)(7XC), (b)(7XFJ USMS)" 
➔1'X5); (b)(7XC); (bX7XFJ @usdoj.gov> (b)(6); lbX7XC) dcd.uscourts.gov>,.,..,rx=6)....,; c,=x,=xq=----, 

f0x5, , 1')(7XC) @d.._c...,.d.-u-s-co_u_r-ts-.-go_v_> ______ __,-

Subject: [EXTERNAL] J6 DEFENDANT Release Order 

Courtroom Deputy to ~ J~e, J~ E. 6~9 

United States District Court for the District of Columbia 
333 Constitution Ave. NW, Washington, DC 20001 
(202-)354-3144 

j(b>(
5

) lbX7XC) @dcd.uscourts.gov 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

t°X6); (b)(7)(C) 

Tue, 21 Jan 2025 23:00:25 +0000 
g~~L,\bX7XCJ [USMS); Carter, Ronald (USMS) 
fbX6) (b)(7XC); (b)(7)(F) KUSMS);!lbX6); (b)(7XC); (b)(7XF) !(USMS) 

[EXTERNAL] J6 DEFENDANT Release Order 
ReleaseOrder Middendorf 24cr116-1.pdf 

Courtroom Deputy to ~ Jv..t:4Je, J~ E. B~9 
United States District Court for the District of Columbia 
333 Constitution Ave. NW, Washington, DC 20001 
(202-)354-3144 

llbx6) (b)(7)(C) @dcd.uscourts.gov 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

day of JANUARY 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS 

THEODORE MIDDENDORF 

CRIMINAL NO. 24-cr-00116-JEB-1 

MAGISTRATE NO. 24-mj-Q0012-MALJ 

r )co, , (b)(7)(CJ i 
DOB'-. .:::::.:::::.::::::::::::::::::::====- PDID: ____ _ 

DCDC: REG. NO. ---- ------

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF DEFENDANT 

IT IS ORDERED that t he above named defendant be released from further custody: (IN THIS 
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

B t h C t
. Chief Judge James E. Boasberg y e our : ____________ _ 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

By e 6); (b)(7XCJ 

Deputy Clerk 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

the __ 2_1_s_t __ day of __ J_a_n_u_a_r_y ___ _, 20 25 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS CRIMINAL NO. CR 21-053 (CJN) 

Edward Jacob Lang 
MAGISTRATE NO. _________ _ 

~DX6); {b)(7J(C) I 
DOB:-=l =====-- PDID: ____ _ 

DCDC: REG. NO. 76480-054 
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

BytheCourt: Judge Carl J. Nichols 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 
r l(6); (o)(7XC) 

BY'::· ========='....._ ______ _ 
Deputy Clerk 
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Sent: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

r x•>: (b)(7XC~ (b/(7/(F) I 

Wed, 22 Jan 2025 14:10:02 +0000 

FW: Release Order for Criminal Defendant: Ryan Wilson, 23-cr-351 (TNM) 

ReleaseOrder _Wilson. pdf 

Chief Deputy US Marshal (A) 
United States Marshals Service 
Washington DC-District Court 

"When you become a leader, success is all about growing others" 

From: l(b;,6>' l")(7)(C) !@dcd.uscourts.gov> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 9:00 AM 
To:flflxF) !(USMS) f'b)(7XE) t@usdoj.gov> 
Cc:!1•X61: (b)(7)(C). '" X')(Fl tUSM$)tbx•>: (b)(7)[c>: (b)(7)(F) @usdoj.gov>; ... j(b1~,6,~, <~=w=),c~),..,,.(bX1=)=1F)~_,llJSMS) 

j1•x•>: (b)l7XC) (b)l7XFJ k'.§)usdoj.gov>; k* !W")(7)1CJ KUS MS) <1\l',~' \b)(7)(C) @usdoj.gov> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Release Order for Criminal Defendant: Ryan W ilson, 23-cr-351 (TNM) 

tbj(6J; (bl(7)(C) ~ 

Courtroom Deputy to theonorable Trevor N. McFadden 
United States District Court for the District of Columbia 
E. Barrett Prettyman United States Courthouse 
333 Constitution Avenue NW , Washington, DC 20001 
202-354-3455 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

day of January 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS CRIMINAL NO. 23-351 (TNM) 

RYAN WILSON 
MAGISTRATE NO. _________ _ 

l(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

DOB._ ______ __, PDID: ____ _ 

DCDC: 3 91-7 40 REG. NO. 40718-511 

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF DEFENDANT 

IT IS ORDERED t hat the above named defendant be released from further custody: (IN THIS 
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

By t he Court: Trevor N . M c Fadden 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

By r • >(6): (b)(7)(C) 

Deputy Clerk 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
(TNM) 
Attachments: 

l (ti)(O): (b)(7J[C) 

l (b)(6J; (o)(7)(CJ 

Wed, 22 Jan 2025 15:37:45 +0000 
["'J(; l(E) I us Ms) 

tb )(6 ): (b)(7)(C): (b)(7)(F) IUSMS)f~~~t,,fl(7)(C), l(USMS); l(ti)(ti]; (b)IJ)(C): (b)(7)(FJ I (USMS) 

[EXTERNAL) Release Order for Criminal Defendant: Andrew Grigsby, 24-cr-382 

ReleaseOrder _ Grigsby.pdf 

Courtroom Deputy to the Honorable Trevor N. McFadden 
United States District Court for the District of Columbia 
E. Barrett Prettyman United States Courthouse 
333 Constitution Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20001 
202-354-3455 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

day of January 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS CRIMINAL NO. 24-382 (TNM) 

ANDREW GRIGSBY 
MAGISTRATE NO. _________ _ 

I PDID: - ----

DCDC: REG. NO. ----- ------

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

By t he Court: Trevor N. McFadden 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

BJb.)(6); (b)(7Xq 

Deputy Clerk 
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Case 1:23-cr-00354-T JK Document 111 Filed 01/22/25 Page 1 of 1 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 
THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) 
) 

v. ) 
) 
) 

JERRY DANIEL BRAUN, ) 
) 
) 

Defendant, ) 

Case No. 23CR00354-TJK 

ORDER GRANTING IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

TIDS CAUSE came before the Court upon the Defendant JERRY DANIEL 

BRAUN's unopposed Motion for Immediate Release, and the government having 

no objection thereto, it is hereby 

ORDERED AND'ADJUDGED that the motion is GRANTED and that the 

United States Marshall Service (USMS) is to immediately release from custody 

JERRY DANIEL BRAUN. 

DATED this 22nd day of January, 2025. 

Isl Timothy J. Kelly 
TIMOTHY J. KELLY 
United States District Judge 
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From: 
Sent: Wed, 22 Jan 202516:17:27 +0000 
To: (b)(7)(E> USMS) 

Cc: (b)(6): (bX7XCJ (b)(7)(F) (USMS):!l"X6); {b)(7XC); (bX])(F) l(USMS);l~~~ ~;J-')(7XC); ! USMS) 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Release Order 
Attachments: 23-354 Braun Release Order.pdf 

Courtroom Deputy to the Honorable Timothy J. Kelly 
U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia 
333 Constitution Avenue, NW 
Washington, DC 20001 
(202} 354-3495 

l§>dcd.uscourts.gov 



2025-USMS-000842 136 of 171 First Interim Release

UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

the __ 2_2_n_d __ day of January 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS rn1M1NAL No. 23cr354 (T JK) 

JERRY DANIEL BRAUN 
MAGISTRATE No. 22mj069 (GMH) 

r )(6): (b)(7)(G) I 
DOB:--=·=====~ PDID: ____ _ 

DCDC: REG. NO. 9 5 7 42-509 
----

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF DEFENDANT 

IT IS ORDERED that the above named defendant be released from further custody: (IN THIS 
CASE ONLY) 

X ON BOND (the bond requirements having been satisfied in this case) No conditions of release 

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

By the Court: Judge Timothy J . Kelly 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

sJD{O): (b)(7)(C) 

Deputy Clerk 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

f x•i: (b)(7)(q I 
Wed, 22 Jan 2025 16:25:05 +0000 

l(b)(7J(E/ k us Ms) 

llbX•l: (b)(7)(C): (b)(7)(FJ I (USMS); [0X• J: lbJ(7XC): (b)(')(FJ (USMS)ll"X•t (b)(?XCJ; (o)(?){F) IUSMS) 

[EXTERNAL] Release Order for Ryan Samsel 
21cr537.l Samsel Release Order.pdf 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

the 22ND day of JANUARY 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS 

RYAN SAMSEL 

CRIMINAL NO. 21-cr-00537-1 JMC 

MAGISTRATE NO. 21-mj-001 88-ZMF 

DOB: e •>, (b)(7)(q I PDID: N/ A 
'======' - ----

DCDC: 376-590 REG. NO. 28332-509 

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF DEFENDANT 

IT IS ORDERED that the above named defendant be released from further custody: (IN THIS 
CASE ONLY) 

XXX 
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

B h C t 
JIA M. COBB, U.S. DISTRICT JUDGE 

yt e our : ___ ___ ______ _ 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

By / s/ r (6): (b)(7Xq 

Deputy Clerk 
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From: 
Sent: Wed, 22 Jan 2025 18:20:50 +0000 
To: 1~xr)(E) tusMs) 
Cc: ~f0x_6J_: (b_>!7_Xq ______ ~11.~_x0_>: _<0x_,x_q_: (o_x,_xFJ_~µSMS); Carter, Ronald (USMS) 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Release Order- D. Box 
Attachments: CR22-413 D. Box (J6 DEF) 1.22.25.pdf 

Good afternoon, 

Please see the attached release order for Dominic Box. 

Thank you 

Courtroom Operations Trainer 
Courtroom Deputy to the Honorable Christopher R. Cooper 
U.S. District and Bankruptcy Court, D.C. 
333 constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20001 
Emailf0x0

>: <oxrxq !@dcd.uscourts.gov 
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

VS CRIMINAL NO. 22-CR-413 (CKK) 

DOMINIC BOX 
MAGISTRATE NO. _________ _ 

r Jl•>: [b)(7)[C) I 
DOB: -=-=====--"PDID: ____ _ 

DCDC: REG. NO. 03600-511 
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

By the Court: Judge Colleen Kollar-Kotelly 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

B ~ [b)!6); (b)(7)(C) 

Deputy Clerk 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

FYI 

l(bl(5): (b)(7){C) 

Wed, 22 Jan 2025 18:25:06 +0000 
Carter, Ronald (USMS) 
[EXTERNAL] FW: Release Order for Rockne Earles 
Release Order for Rockne Earles.pdf 

1),)(6): (b)(7){C) 

Courtroom Operations Trainer 
Courtroom Deputy to the Honorable Chris-topher R. Cooper 
U.S. District and Bankruptcy Court, D.C. 
333 Constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20001 
EmallfbX

5>: (b)(7){C) !@dcd.uscourts.gov 

Froml1bx
5>: (b)(7){C) p)dcd.uscourts.gov> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 11:11 AM 
To: f b)(7){E> ~usdoj.gov 
Cc: j1bx5>: {b)(7){C) tg)dcd.uscourts.gov> 
Subject: Release Order for Rockne Earles 

Attached is the release order for this defendant. 

l(b){5): (b)(7XC) I 
Courtroom Deputy to the Honorable Judge Reggie B. Walton 
U.S. District and Bankruptcy Courts for the District of Columbia 
333 Constitution Avenue, N.W. I Washington, D.C. 20001 
Phone: (202) 354-3049 I Email[0x6

>: {b)(7)(CJ ~ dcd.uscourts.gov 

Website: http://www.dcd.uscourts.gov 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

the 22nd day of January 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS 

ROCKNE EARLES 

CRIMINAL NO. 23-cr-367 

MAGISTRATE NO. 23-mj-76 ----------

I PDID: ___ _ 

DCDC: REG. NO. 53802-51 Q 
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

BytheCourt: Judge Reggie 8 . Walton 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

B r )(6): {b)(7)(q 

Deputy Clerk 
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From: t l(6); (bl(7)(C) 

Sent: Wed, 22 Jan 2025 18:46:34 +0000 
To: 
( U SM S) Jil>Xfi); (bl(71(C) 

l(b){7)(E> I l"i<7><E> ""li'>>=r:rx=E> ___ _,I Carter, Ronald (USMS); j0xw 1 

IUSMS); l(fi); (b)(7)(C) USMS);l(li)(f>J; V,)(7)(C) I ,...._ ____ _. 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Release of a Defendant 
Attachments: CR24-123.order.grant.MTD.pdf, gossjankowski release.pdf 
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UNITED STATES DISTR1CT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

UNITED ST ATES OF AMERICA, 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

V. Criminal No. 21-0123 (PLF) 

VITALI GOSSJANKOWSKJ, 

Defendant. _______________ ) 

ORDER 

Consistent with this Court's Minute Order of January 22, 202\ it is hereby 

ORDERED the United States' Motion to Dismiss Indictment with Prejudice 

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 48(a) is GRANTED in part and DENIED in pai1 

[Dkt. No. 2301; it is 

FURTHER ORDERED that this case is hereby DISMISSED without prejudice; it 

LS 

FURTHER ORDERED that all future deadlines and court appearances are 

VACA TED; and it is 

FURTHER ORDERED that Mr. GossJankowski's Consent Motion for Immediate 

Release [0kt. No. 231] is DENIED as moot in light of the dismissal ofthis case. 

The Clerk of Cow·t is directed to tenninate the case. An opinion will follow. 

SO ORDERED. 

DATE: January 22, 2025 

Date: 2025.01.22 
13:22:30 -05'00' 

PAUL L. FRlEDMAN 
United States District Judge 
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the 22 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

day of January 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS 

VITALI GOSSJANKOWSKI 

CRIMINAL NO. 21-123 ( PLF) 
MAGISTRATE NO. 21-mj-QQ1 Q5 

l
lbX6); (b)(7)(C) I 

DOB:._ ______ _. PDID: ____ _ 

DCDC: REG. NO. 26236-509 
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

By t he Court: Paul L. Friedman 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

By [ ' 1(6); (b)(7RC) 

Deputy Clerk 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

FYI 

Carter, Ronald (USMS) 
Wed, 22 Jan 2025 19:55:32 +0000 
f K•~ ib)(7)(C): (b)(7XF) I USMS) 
k~~.\b)(JXC): l(USMS)~~(bl-(5),-· (b=)(7)=(q-, ,-b)(7=)(F)~KUSMS) 

FW: Order granting motion to dismiss 
USA v. Banuelos Dismissal Order.pdf 

From: Tanya Chutkan <!1blt•>: (b)(7)1C) @dcd.uscourts.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 2:50 PM 
To~1b1161' (b)(7)(C) @usdoj .gov>j l~~c!0)(7)(C): l(USMS) ~k~b)(7)(CJ: @usdoj.gov> 
Cc: Carter, Ronald (USMtb>r•>: (b)(7XCJ ~usdoj.gov> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: Order granting motion to dismiss 

Attached is the order I'm filing for all J6 motions to dismiss. It doesn't change anything, 
but I felt it needed to be said. Some of my colleagues are issuing similar orders. 

From: Tanya Chutkan 1ll>x•J: lb)(7>rCJ @dcd.uscourts.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 2:45 PM 
To:1b117x E> @DCD.USCOURTS.GOV> 
Subject: Order granting motion to dismiss 

Attached is my Order. 
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UNITED STA TES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA , 

V. 

Criminal Action No. 24-CR-135 (TSC) 
JOHN BANUELOS, 

Defendant. 

ORDER 

The Government's Motion to Dismiss the Indictment pursuant to Federal Rule of 

Criminal Procedure 48(a), ECF No. 29, is GRANTED in part and DENIED in part. 

The Government's only stated reason for pursuing dismissal with prejudice is that the 

President, in addition to pardoning the Defendant, has ordered the Attorney General to do so. 

See Gov't's Mot. at 1, ECF No. 29 (citing Unnumbered Proclamation, _ Fed. Reg. _ (Jan. 20, 

2025).1 The Court does not discern- and neither party has identified- any defect in either the 

legal merits of, or the factual basis for, the Government's case. Indeed, while a pardon exercises 

the Executive's "exclusive authority and absolute discretion to decide whether to prosecute a 

case," United States v. Nixon, 418 U.S. 683, 693 (1974), it "does not necessarily render 

' innocent' a defendant of any alleged violation of the law," United States v. Flynn, 507 F. Supp. 

3d 116, 136 (D.D.C. 2020). 

More broadly, no pardon can change the tragic truth of what happened on January 6, 

2021. On that day, "a mob professing support for then-President Trump violently attacked the 

1 Available athttps://www.whitehouse.gov/presidential-actions/2025/01/granting-pardons-and­
commutation-of-sentences-for-certain-offenses-relating-to-the-events-at-or-near-the-united­
states-capitol-on-january-6-2021/ [https://perma.cc/W4NT-4K4S]. 

Page 1 of 2 
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United States Capitol" to stop the electoral college certification. Trump v. Thompson, 20 F.4th 

10, 15 (D.C. Cir. 2021). The dismissal of this case cannot undo the "rampage [that] left multiple 

people dead, injured more than 140 people, and inflicted millions of dollars in damage." Id. It 

cannot diminish the heroism of law enforcement officers who "struggled, facing serious injury 

and even death, to control the mob that overwhelmed them." United States v. Griffin, 119 F.4th 

1001 , 1004 (D.C. Cir. 2024). It cannot whitewash the blood, feces, and terror that the mob left in 

its wake. Thompson, 20 F.4th at 19. And it cannot repair the jagged breach in America's sacred 

tradition of peacefully transitioning power. 

In hundreds of cases like this one over the past four years, judges in this district have 

administered justice without fear or favor. The historical record established by those 

proceedings must stand, unmoved by political winds, as a testament and as a warning. 

For these reasons, it is hereby ORDERED that the case is DISMISSED without 

prejudice. All scheduled proceedings and deadlines are VACA TED. 

Date: January 22, 2025 

r ~t:f, s: e~e:w,,, 
TANYA S. CHUTKAN 
United States District Judge 

Page 2 of 2 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

FYI 

Carter, Ronald (USMS) 

Wed, 22 Jan 2025 20:25:25 +0000 
l(b)(6): {b)(7)(C}: {b){7XFJ (USMS) 

l~~~i~b)(7)(C); I (USMS)t,...b){--6):_(b __ )(7--)(C);-, (b- )(7){-,--FJ -,I (USMS) 

FW: Release Order for Timothy Desjardins 

Release Order for Timothy Desjardins.pdf 

From: jcb){6): <<>>(7)(C}: {b)(7)(FJ @dcd.uscourts.gov> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 3:23 PM 
To: Carter, Ronald (USMS) 1~x0>: <<>ir,xq @usdoj.gov> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fw: Release Order for Timothy Desjardins 

FYI 

Courtroom Operations Trainer 
Courtroom Deputy to the Honorable Christopher R. Cooper 
U.S. District and Bankruptcy Court, D.C. 

333 Constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20001 
Email=rx•>: (b)(7XC) r dcd.uscourt.s..gov 

From:jlhx0>: (b)(7)(C> {vdcd.uscourts.gov> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 3:10:00 PM 

t@usdoj.gov fb)(7XE> @ usdoj.gov> 

dcd.uscourts. ov> 

Attached is the release order for this defendant. 

1")(6); (b)(7)(C) I 
Courtroom Deputy to the Honorable Judge Reggie B. Walton 

U.S. District and Bankruptcy Courts for the District of Columbia 

333 Constitut ion Avenue, N.W. I Washington, D.C. 20001 

Phone: (202) 354-3049 I Emaill(bxo>: lh>(7)cq ~ dcd.uscourts.gov 

Website: http :ljwww .dcd. usco u rts.gov 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

the 22nd day of January 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS CRIMINAL NO. 25-cr-1 
-----------

TIMOTHY DESJARDINS 
MAG IS TR ATE NO. 21-mj-663 

llb)(6 ): (")(?)(q: (b)(7)(EJ I 
DOB: =·======- PDID: ____ _ 

DCDC: REG. NO. 54 716-51 Q 
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
r )(6); lb)(7Xq; (b)(7XE) 

By~-------~ 
Deputy Clerk 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Carter, Ronald (USMS) 
Wed, 22 Jan 2025 20:26:28 +0000 

l[bX6): {b)(7XCJ: (b)(7XF) I USMS) 

FW: Order granting motion to dismiss 
BANUELOS RELEASE ORDER.pdf 

From:I1b)(6J: (o>r>(CJ l@dcd.uscourts.gov> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 3:05 PM 
To: f0x0J: <0)(7xci ~dcd.uscourts.gov> 
Cc: Carter, Ronald (USMS) -fxoJ: {b)(1XC) tpusdoj.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL) RE: Order granting motion to dismiss 

I just docketed the dismissal and sent over the release order, roughly 15 minutes ago. I've 
attached here as well. 

Very Respectfully, 

ourtroom eputy to the Honorable Tanya S. Chutkan 
U.S. District and Bankruptcy Courts for the District of Columbia 
333 Constitution Avenue, N.W \bXO> ,bx , xCJ · D.C. 20001 
Phone: (202) 354-3083 I Emai dcd.uscourts. ov 
Website: http://www.dcd.uscourts.gov 

From~:,,xoi, <0)(7XC) @dcd.uscourts.gov> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 3:03 PM 
To: :,,xo,, (bx,xai dcd.uscourts. ov> 
Cc: \bxo>, {b)(7XC) usdo·. ov 

Subject: Fw: Order granting motion to dismiss 

Can you please forward, if you haven't already, a release order? 

Thank you 
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Duplicste of o therpsg-=;. in ttlis ~ quest 

Courtroom Operations Trainer 
Courtroom Deputy to the Honorable Christopher R. Cooper 
U.S. District and Bankruptcy Court, D.C. 
333 Constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20001 
Emaur x6

) \b)(7Xq l@dcd.uscourts.gov 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

the 22ND day of JANUARY 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS CRIMINAL No. 24-cr-00 135-TSC-1 

JOHN BANUELOS 
MAGISTRATE NO. _ _ ___ _ ___ _ 

r X6); (b)(7)(C) I 
DOB:-::- ======- PDID: ____ _ 

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

BytheCourt: Judge Tanya S. Chutkan 

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK 

Bvr X6); (b)(7XC) 

Deputy Clerk 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

FYI 

Carter, Ronald (USMS) 
Wed, 22 Jan 2025 22:04:11 +0000 
f 1l6l: (t0(1J(C) (bj(1j(FJ I< LJ $ M $) 

FW: Porter & Burton Motions to Dismiss Orders 
James Porter - Order.pdf, Burton - Order.pdf 

From:l(bJ\6t lb)l?KCJ @dcd.uscourts.gov> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 5:01 PM 
To: Carter, Ronald (USMS) 4 ll>)(5): (b)(7J(c1 e)usdoj.gov> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Porter & Burton Motions to Dismiss Orders 

Good evening, 

Here are the orders requested. If you need any information or anyone else, please feel free to 
email me or reach ta my cell listed below. If it is urgent, I will likely answer my cell the quickest. 

nmIna aw er o the Honorable Magistrate Judges 
333 Constitution Ave. NW 
Washington, DC 20001 f )(6); (bl(1XC/ I 
C: 4 [b)(6l, (li)(71(Cl 
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Case 1:25-mj-00004-GMH Document 9 Filed 01/22/25 Page 1 of 1 

UNITED ST ATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. Case No. 25-MJ-0004 

JAMES PORTER 

Defendant. 

ORDER 

Pursuant to the motion filed by the United States, it is hereby ordered that the Motion to 

Dismiss the Indictment pursuant to Rule 48(a) with prejudice is GRANTED. 

SO ORDERED this 21st day of January, 2025. 
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Case 1:24-mj-00314-ZMF Document 5 Filed 01/22/25 Page 1 of 1 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. Case No. 24-MJ-314 

BRIAN BURTON 

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

Wed, 22 Jan 2025 20:54:39 +0000 
Carter, Ronald (USMS) 
j'">(6): (b)(7XC) ll'b)(6~ (b/UXCl. (b){7,{f, I (USMS);fX"~ (6X7~ci, (b)(7)(F} µ sMs) 

[EXTERNAL) Update regarding 22-cr-408 (U.S. v. Kelley) 
22-cr-408 Mem. Op. & Order (ECF No. 88).pdf 

Judge Kollar-Kotelly's Memorandum Opinion and Order granting the Government's Motion to Dismiss in 
Mr. Kelley's case is attached. Please let us know if you need anything further for this case. 

Thank you! 

Best, 

t xo,: (b)(TJ(C) I Law Clerk 

Hon. Colleen Kollar-Kotelly 
j:bxoi, (b)(7Jtci l@dcd.uscourts.gov 
r ("J: (bl(7)(C) I 
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Case 1:22-cr-00408-CKK Document 88 Filed 01/22/25 Page 1 of 8 

UNITED ST A TES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

V. 

EDWARD KELLEY, 

Defendant. 

Criminal Acti011 No. 22-408 (CKK) 

MEMORANDUM OPINION & ORDER 
(January 22, 2025) 

I. 

A grand jury charged Defendant Edward Kelley by superseding indictment with multiple 

felony and misdemeanor counts for his alleged conduct during the riot at the United States Capitol 

on January 6, 2021. See Superseding Indictment, ECF No. 52. After a two-day bench trial at 

which the Court heard testimony from seven witnesses, admitted J 02 exhibits into evidence, and 

considered a detailed stipulation of undisputed facts to which the parties had agreed, the Court 

found Ke1ley guilty, beyond a reasonable doubt, of the following offenses: 

• Obstructing Officers During a Civil Disorder, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 23 l (a)(3); 

• Assaulting, Resisting, or Impeding Certain Officers, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 
§ 11 l(a)(l); 

• Destruction of Government Property Causing Damage in an Amount Exceeding 
$1,000, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1361 ; 

• Destruction of Government Property Causing Damage in an Amount Less Than $1,000. 
in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1361; 

• Entering and Remaining in a Restiicted Building or Grounds, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 
§ l 752(a)( l ); 

• Disorderly and Disruptive Conduct in a Restricted Building or Grounds, in violation of 
18 U.S.C. § l 752(a)(2); 
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Case 1:22-cr-00408-CKK Document 88 Filed 01/22/25 Page 2 of 8 

• Engaging in Physical Violence in a Restricted Building or Grounds, in violation of 18 
U.S.C. § 1752(a)(4). 

• Entering and Remaining in the Ga11ery of a House of Congress, .in violation of 40 
U.S.C. § 5104(e)(2)(B); 

• DisorderJy Conduct in a Capitol Building, in violation of 40 U.S.C. § 5 104(e)(2)(D); 

• Act of Physical Violence in the Capitol Grounds or Buildings, in violation of 40 U .S.C. 
§ 5104(e)(2)(F); and 

• Parading, Demonstrating, or Picketing in a Capitol Building, .in violation of 40 U.S.C. 
§ 5104(e)(2)(G). 

See Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, ECF No. 84, at 1- 2, 39-40. Applying the Supreme 

Comt's decision in Fisch er v. United States, 603 U.S. 480 (2024), the Court found Kelley not 

guilty of one other felony count with which the grand jury had charged him: Obstruction of an 

Official Proceeding and Aiding and Abetting the Same, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1512(c) and 

2. See Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law at 22- 27. 

As the Court desctibed in its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, ECFNo. 84, Kelley 

acted violently and destructively on January 6, 2021, including by assaulting a U.S. Capitol Police 

officer who was attempting to stop rioters from breaching the Capitol Building: 

Once under the scaffolding [around the West Front of the Capitol Building], Kelley 
encountered [U.S. Capitol Police] Officer Albert Chow, who was defending an 
entrance to the area and had become isolated from other officers and outflanked by 
rioters after other [U.S. Capitol Police] officers retreated to another position. At 
the time, Officer Chow was actively working to repel rioters from unlawfully 
entering the Capitol Building. He was also wearing a black jacket that read "U.S. 
Capitol Police" in clear, block letters across the back. While Officer Chow was 
attempting to perform these duties in the face of an overwhelming number of 
rioters, Kelley approached Officer Chow from behind and, with the help of two 
other rioters, tackled the officer to the ground. Officer Chow struck his head on the 
steps of the Capitol as he fell. Based on Officer Chow's actions and visible apparel 
at the moment that Kelley helped tackle him, the Court finds that Kelley knew that 
Officer Chow was a federal law enforcement officer engaged in the performance of 
his official duties i,t response to the riot at the Capitol and that Kelley tackled the 
officer with the purpose of obstructing him in the performance of those duties. 

Id. at 15- 16 (citations omitted). This assault is captured on video. See id. (citing Government's 

2 
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Case 1:22-cr-00408-CKK Document 88 Filed 01/22/25 Page 3 of 8 

Exhibit 303, wbjch played in open court dming trial). Later, Kelley helped other rioters push 

through two other police lines. Id. at 16- 17. And once he reached the perimeter of the Capitol 

Building, Kelley attempted to force entry and ultimately entered through a broken window: 

Once Kelley arrived at the Senate Wing Door, he picked up a long plank of wood 
that another rioter had thrown partway through a window adjacent to the door, 
partly shattering the window. Using that piece of wood, [Kelley] forcibly shattered 
anotheT part of the window, widening the opening into the Capitol Building. He 
then kicked the Senate Wing Door twice from the outside, attempting to force it 
open. Moments later, two other rioters used a shield stolen from police officers and 
the piece of wood to shatter what remained of the adjacent window that Kelley had 
damaged. Kelley then climbed through the broken window into the Capitol 
Building at approximately 2:13 p.m. 

Id. at 17 (citations omitted). These actions, too, are captured on video. See id. 

Kelley was the fow·th rioter, among hundreds, who entered the Capitol Building on January 

6, 2021. See id. Once inside, Kelley immediately began attempting to help others force entry: 

[Kelley] pushed hard on the Senate Wing Door, attempting to force it open from 
the inside despite the fact that it was locked. Then, aner watching another rioter 
try and fail to kick the door open, Kelley returned and kicked the locked door open 
with great force, seriously damaging the door in the process. After Kelley 
succeeded in kicking the door open, rioters immediately began streaming through 
the doorway into the Capitol Building. 

Id. at 17 (citations omitted). Again, Kelley ' s actions are captmed on video. See id. 

Kelley then joined other rioters in parading through the haJls of the Capitol Building, intent 

on disrupting the certification of the votes of the Electoral College. Id. at 17- 18. Kelley ultimately 

made his way into the Senate Gallery, where he took two "seJfie"-style photographs of bjmself. 

Id. at 18- 20. He then proceeded through several other rooms of the Capitol Building that were 

closed to the public at the time, including the Rotunda, where be took another photograph. Id. at 

20. Kelley exited the Capitol Building at approximately 2:55 p.m., having been inside the building 

for about 42 minutes. Id. at 20. 

3 
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Case 1:22-cr-00408-CKK Document 88 Filed 01/22/25 Page 4 of 8 

After the events of January 6, 2021. a grand jury in the Eastern Disttict of Tennessee 

charged Kelley by indictment with, among other things, conspiracy to murder agents of the Federal 

Bureau of Investigation who had participated in the investigation of his role in the January 6 riot. 

See Indictment, United States v. Edward Kelley, 3:22-cr-118-TAV-JEM, ECF No. 17 (E.D. Tenn. 

Dec. 21, 2022); see also Criminal Complaint, United States v. Edward Kelley, 3:22-cr-118-TAV­

JEM, ECF No. 3 (E.D. Tenn. Dec. 16, 2022). A jury in the Eastern District of Tennessee convicted 

Kelley of these charges in November 2024. Se·e Jury Verdict, United States v. Edward Kelley, 

3:22-cr-118-TAV-JEM, ECF No. 85 (E.D. Tenn. Nov. 11 , 2024). 

On April 7, 2025, Kelley is scheduled to be sentenced in this District for the three felony 

and eight misdemeanor offenses related to his conduct on January 6, 2021 , of which this Court 

found him guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. See Min. Order (Nov. 8, 2024). 

II. 

On January 21, 2025. the Government moved to dismiss the superseding indictment 

against Kelley "with prejudice" under Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 48(a). Gov't's Mot. 

to Dismiss, ECF No. 87. Kelley consents to the relief requested in this motion. See id. As 

the "reason for this dismissal,' ' the Government cites an as-yet wmumbered presidential 

Proclamation titled "Granting Pardons and Commutation of Sentences for Certain Offenses 

Relating to the Events at or Near the United States Capitol on January 6, 2021." Id. That 

Proclamation, in relevant part, "direct[s] the Attorney General to pursue dismissal with prejudice 

to the Government of all pending indictments against individuals fot their conduct reJated to the 

events at or near the United States Capitol on January 6, 2021." Unnumbered 

Proclamation, Fed. Reg. __ _ _ (Jan. 20, 2025), https://perma.cc/W4NT-4K4S. 

4 
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Case 1:22-cr-00408-CKK Document 88 Filed 01/22/25 Page 5 of 8 

By its tenns, Rule 48(a) allows the Government, ''with leave of court," to "dismiss 

an indictment, info1mation, or complaint." Fed. R. Crim. P. 48(a). It does not explicitly grant 

either the Government or the trial court the authority to vacate or set aside a plea of guilty, a jury 

verdict, or a court's findings of fact and conclusions of law following a bench n.-ial. See id.; see 

also United States v. Smith, 467 F.3d 785, 789 (D.C. Cir. 2006) (noting that .. both the text of 

[Rule 48] and its roots in the common law doctrine of nolle prosequi cast doubt on Rule 48 's 

applicability post-conviction" without deciding whether Rule 48 "can properly be used to vacate 

a final conviction"); Rice v. Rivera, 6 17 F.3d 802, 810 (4th Cir. 2010) (questioning whether Rule 

48 allows dismissal following "conviction and unsuccessful direct appeal" without resolving 

whether dismissal under Rule 48 was proper under those circumstances). 

However, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit has indicated in dicta that the 

Government may seek dismissal of criminal charges under Rule 48(a) at least w1til a judgment 

becomes final on direct appeal. See Uniled States v. Kn;ght, 981 F.3d 1095, 1109 (D.C. Cir. 2020) 

(citing Rinaldi v. United States, 434 U.S. 22 (1977)); see also Smith, 467 F.3d at 788-89 

(concluding that trial com-ts have jurisdiction to entertain Rule 48 motions "after sentencing and 

appeal''); cf Hirabayashi v. United States, 828 F.2d 591, 607 (9th Cir. 1987) C'There is no 

precedent for applying Rule 48 to vacate a conviction after the trial and appellate proceedings have 

ended."). It follows that the Government may also seek dismissal under Rule 48(a) before the trial 

court has sentenced the defendant. Consistent with that conclusion, cowts in this District have 

granted RuJe 48(a) motions filed after trial but before sentencing. See, e.g., United States v. 

Venkara , 709 F. Supp. 3d 9, 19 (D.D.C. 2024) (RDM); United States v. Purdy, No. 22-cr-19-1, 

2025 WL 219111, at *2 (D.D.C. Jan. 14, 2025) (RCL). 

5 
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Upon consideration of the relevant authority, this Court agrees that Rule 48(a) is a proper 

vehicle for dismissal of a criminal case ''with leave of the court" before sentencing. The Court 

must therefore consider whether to grant its leave to dismiss this case. See United States v. 

Ammidown, 497 F.2d 615, 620 (D.C. Cir. 1973) (noting that the "requirement of judicial leave" in 

Rule 48 "gives the court a rote in dismissals following indictment," even when "the defendant 

concurs in this dismissal"); United States v. Flynn, 507 F. Supp. 3d 116, 126- 31 (D.D.C. 2020) 

(EGS) (analyzing the scope of a trial court's discretion under Rule 48(a)); see also Rinaldi, 434 

U.S. at 30 n.15 (noting that Rule 48 "obviously vest[s] some discretion in the court" without 

deciding whether that discretion extends to cases in which the defendant consents to dismissal). 

To infmm this analys is, the Cowt may "require a statement of reasons and underlying factual 

basis" for the Government's motion to dismiss. See Ammioown, 497 F,2d at 620. 

Here, the Government's only stated reason for pursuing dismissal with prejudice is that the 

President has ordered the Attorney General to do so. See Gov't's Mot. (citing Unnumbered 

Proclamation, __ Fed. Reg. ____ (Jan. 20, 2025), https://pe1ma.cc/W4NT-4K4S). The Court 

does not discern-and neither pany has identified-any defect in either the legal merits of, or the 

factual basis for, the Government's case that would require dismissal. But recognizing that "the 

Executive Branch bas exclusive authority and absolute discretion to decide whether to prosecute a 

case," the Court shall not require a further explanation here. See United States v. Nixon. 418 U.S. 

683, 693 (1974). 

m. 

Dismissals of charges, pardons after convictions, and commutations of sentences will not 

change the truth of what happened on January 6, 2021. What occurred that day is preserved for 

the funu·e through thousands of contemporaneous videos, transcripts of u·ials, jury verdicts, and 

6 
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judicial opjnions analyzing and recounting the evidence through a neutral lens. Those records are 

immutable and represent the truth, no matter how the events of January 6 are described by those 

charged or their allies. 

What role law enforcement played that day and the heroism of each officer who responded 

also cannot be altered or ignored. Present that day were poJice officers from the U.S. Capitol 

Police and those who came to their aid when called: the D.C. Metropolitan Police Department, 

Montgomery County Police Department, Prince George's County Police Department, Arlington 

County Police Department, and Fairfax County Police Department. Grossly outnumbered, those 

law enforcement officers acted valiantly to protect the Members of Congress, their staff, the Vice 

President and his family, the integrity of the Capitol grounds, and the Capitol Building- our 

symbol of liberty and a symbol of democracy around the world. For hours, those officers were 

aggressively confronted and violently assaulted. More than 140 officers were injured. Others 

tragically passed away as a result of the events of that day. But law enforcement did not falter. 

Standing with bear spray streaming down their faces, those officers carried out their duty to protect. 

All of what I have described has been recorded for posterity, ensuring that what transpired 

on January 6, 2021 can be judged accurately in the future. 

* * 

7 
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IV. 

For the foregoing reasons, it is hereby ORDERED that: 

• The Government's [87] Motion to Dismiss is GRANTED; 

• The [52] Superseding lndictment is DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE pursuant to 

Federal RuJe of Criminal Procedure 48(a); 

• Defendant Edward Kelley is RELEASED from further detention in connection with 

this case, provided that such release shall not affect Kelley's detention in connection 

with any other case; 

• All scheduled proceedings and deadlines in this matter, including the Sentencing 

Hearing scheduled to take place on April 7, 2025, and the associated deadHnes for 

Memoranda in Aid ofSentencing, are VACATED; and 

• A11 pending motions are DENIED AS MOOT. 

The Clerk of the Court is respectfully directed to close this case. 

SO ORDERED. 

Dated: January 22, 2025 

g. 

~ 6,)/4~ ~ 
COLLEE KOLLAR-KOTtzy:t 
United States District Judge 



2025-USMS-000842 166 of 171 First Interim Release

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
(TNM) 
Attachments: 

Thu, 23 Jan 2025 14:57:32 +0000 
MS) 
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""""...,...,...,...T'T'T"T"'!i.elease Order for Criminal Defendant: David Paul Daniel, 24-cr-200 

ReleaseOrder _Daniel. pdf 

Release Order in this case ONLY. 

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
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the 23 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

day of January 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS CRIMINAL NO. 24-2 00 (TNM) 

DAVID PAUL DANIEL 
MAGISTRATE NO. _________ _ 

l(bXO): (b)(7)(C) I 
DOB:=-==========- PDID: ____ _ 

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

By t X6): (b)(7)(C) 

Deputy Clerk 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

the __ 2_3_r_d __ day of ___ J_a_n_u_a_r_y __ _, 20 25 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

VS CRIMINAL NO. CR 21-447-2 (CJN) 

Joseph Daniel Hutchinson, Ill 
MAGISTRATE NO. _________ _ 

r
bX6): (b)(7}(C) I 

DOB:~_-----~ PDID: ____ _ 

DCDC: REG. NO. ---- ------

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF DEFENDANT 

IT IS ORDERED that the above named defendant be released from further custody: (IN THIS 
CASE ONLY) 

X 
ON BONO (the bond requirements having been satisfied in this case) 

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
By r X6): (bX7)(C) 

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

VS CRIMINAL NO. CR 21-447-5 (CJN) 

Olivia Michele Pollock 
MAGISTRATE NO. _________ _ 

l

ib)~ ): (b)(/)(C} I 
DOB: ._ ______ _. PDID: ____ _ 

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

By r l(6): (• )(IXC} 

Deputy Clerk 
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ire { 61: (b)(7)(q; (bJ(7XF) 1u s Ms) 

Fri, 24 Jan 2025 22:30:50 +0000 
lM ): (b)(7)(C); (t,}(7J(F) IUSMS) 
Carter, Ron a Id (us Ms) :=rei ~,.,,...~5,.-=(•)(?= 'f(q=-, --,I (us MS) 

Antony Vo 56159-509 
21 er 509.pdf, 25 er 10.pdf 

Antony VO USMS#56159-509 was found guilty on April 10, 2024, in DC District Court 
case 21-cr-509. VO was placed On Bond and scheduled to voluntary surrender to FMC 
Lexington on June 4, 2024. VO filed an appeal and extension. The D.C. Circuit affirmed 
the sentence and VO was ordered to report on June 14, 2024. 

On June 14, 2024, VO knowingly failed to surrender for service of a sentence pursuant 
to a court order. 

The Court issued two warrants for VO, the first was issued on July 2, 2024 for Failure to 
Report to Bureau of Prisons as Ordered (21 -cr50). The second was issued on January 
15, 2025 for Failure to Surrender for Service of a Sentence Pursuant to a Court Order 
(25-mj-11; 25-cr-10). 

On January 24, 2025, the USAO filed a motion to quash both arrest warrants. The 
USAO cites to the Executive Order dated January 20, 2025, Granting Pardons and 
Commutation of Sentences for Certain Offenses Relating to the Events at Or Near the 
United States Capitol on January 6 , 2021 , as the reason for this motion. 

The Court has not responded to the motions. 

Please find attached a copy of the motions filed by the USAO. 

Thanks for your time and assistance. 

Very Respectfully, 

r )(Oi (b)(7)(Ct (b)(7)(fc ~nited States Marshal 
ormea 5tates Iv1ars11ais 5ervIce I rnsmc of Columbia - District Court 

l(bX6): (b)(7XC): \D (,' ,tFJ I 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

This message may contain information that is law enforcement sensitive. If you are not 
the intended recipient, please immediately (1) advise the sender by reply e-mail that this 
message was inadvertently transmitted to you, and (2) delete this e-mail from your 
system. This message should NOT be released to any personnel who do not have a valid 
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"need to know" without prior approval of an authorized USMS official. Thank you for 
your cooperation. 




